
Democratic Services Contact Officer: Patrick Adams 03450 450 500 democratic.services@scambs.gov.uk 

 
 
 
 
 
 

18 August 2017 

 

To: Councillor Mark Howell, Portfolio Holder 
 
 David Bard Scrutiny and Overview Committee 
 Anna Bradnam Opposition Spokesman 
 Janet Lockwood Opposition 
 
Dear Sir / Madam 
 
You are invited to attend the next meeting of ENVIRONMENTAL SERVICES PORTFOLIO 
HOLDER'S MEETING, which will be held in SWANSLEY ROOM A, GROUND FLOOR at South 
Cambridgeshire Hall on TUESDAY, 29 AUGUST 2017 at 9.00 a.m. 
 
Yours faithfully 
Beverly Agass 
Chief Executive 
 
Requests for a large print agenda must be received at least 48 hours before the meeting. 
 

 
AGENDA 

PAGES 
 PROCEDURAL ITEMS   
 
1. Declarations of Interest    
 
2. Minutes of Previous Meeting   1 - 4 
 The Portfolio Holder is asked to sign the minutes of the meeting held on 

15 February 2017 as a correct record.  
 

   
 INFORMATION ITEMS   
 
3. Future Approach to Dry Recycling Collection   5 - 14 
 
4. Community Awards 2018   15 - 16 
 
 DECISION ITEMS   
 
5. Proposed Fees and Charges for Food Hygiene Reinspections for 

2017/18  
 17 - 22 

 
 STANDING ITEMS   
 
6. Forward Plan    
 The Portfolio Holder will maintain, for agreement at each meeting, a 

Forward Plan identifying all matters relevant to the Portfolio which it is 
believed are likely to be the subject of consideration and / or decision by 
the Portfolio Holder, or recommendation to, or referral by, the Portfolio 

 

 

 

South Cambridgeshire Hall 

Cambourne Business Park 

Cambourne 

Cambridge 

CB23 6EA 

t: 03450 450 500 

f: 01954 713149 

www.scambs.gov.uk 



Holder to Cabinet, Council, or any other constituent part of the Council.   
The plan will be updated as necessary.  The Portfolio Holder will be 
responsible for the content and accuracy of the forward plan. 

   
7. Date of Next Meeting    
 Councillors are asked to bring their diaries.  
   

 
OUR LONG-TERM VISION 

 
South Cambridgeshire will continue to be the best place to live, work and study in the country. 
Our district will demonstrate impressive and sustainable economic growth. Our residents will 
have a superb quality of life in an exceptionally beautiful, rural and green environment. 

 
 

OUR VALUES 
 

We will demonstrate our corporate values in all our actions. These are: 
 Working Together 
 Integrity 
 Dynamism 
 Innovation 

  



 GUIDANCE NOTES FOR VISITORS TO SOUTH CAMBRIDGESHIRE HALL 
 Notes to help those people visiting the South Cambridgeshire District Council offices 

 
While we try to make sure that you stay safe when visiting South Cambridgeshire Hall, you also have a 
responsibility for your own safety, and that of others. 
 
Security 

When attending meetings in non-public areas of the Council offices you must report to Reception, sign in, 
and at all times wear the Visitor badge issued.  Before leaving the building, please sign out and return the 
Visitor badge to Reception. 
Public seating in meeting rooms is limited. For further details contact Democratic Services on 03450 450 
500 or e-mail democratic.services@scambs.gov.uk 
 
Emergency and Evacuation 

In the event of a fire, a continuous alarm will sound.  Leave the building using the nearest escape route; 
from the Council Chamber or Mezzanine viewing gallery this would be via the staircase just outside the 
door.  Go to the assembly point at the far side of the staff car park opposite the staff  entrance 

 Do not use the lifts to leave the building.  If you are unable to use stairs by yourself, the 

emergency staircase landings have fire refuge areas, which give protection for a minimum of 1.5 
hours.  Press the alarm button and wait for help from Council fire wardens or the fire brigade. 

 Do not re-enter the building until the officer in charge or the fire brigade confirms that it is safe to 
do so. 

 
First Aid 

If you feel unwell or need first aid, please alert a member of staff. 
 
Access for People with Disabilities 

We are committed to improving, for all members of the community, access to our agendas and minutes. 
We try to take all circumstances into account but, if you have any specific needs, please let us know, and 
we will do what we can to help you.  All meeting rooms are accessible to wheelchair users.  There are 
disabled toilet facilities on each floor of the building.  Infra-red hearing assistance systems are available in 
the Council Chamber and viewing gallery. To use these, you must sit in sight of the infra-red transmitter 
and wear a ‘neck loop’, which can be used with a hearing aid switched to the ‘T’ position.  If your hearing 
aid does not have the ‘T’ position facility then earphones are also available and can be used 
independently. You can get both neck loops and earphones from Reception. 
 
Toilets 

Public toilets are available on each floor of the building next to the lifts. 
 
Recording of Business and Use of Mobile Phones 

We are open and transparent about how we make decisions. We allow recording, filming and photography 
at Council, Cabinet and other meetings, which members of the public can attend, so long as proceedings 
at the meeting are not disrupted.  We also allow the use of social media during meetings to bring Council 
issues to the attention of a wider audience.  To minimise disturbance to others attending the meeting, 
please switch your phone or other mobile device to silent / vibrate mode. 
 
Banners, Placards and similar items 

You are not allowed to bring into, or display at, any public meeting any banner, placard, poster or other 
similar item.  Failure to do so, will result in the Chairman suspending the meeting until such items are 
removed. 
 
Disturbance by Public 

If a member of the public interrupts proceedings at a meeting, the Chairman will warn the person 
concerned.  If they continue to interrupt, the Chairman will order their removal from the meeting room.  If 
there is a general disturbance in any part of the meeting room open to the public, the Chairman may call 
for that part to be cleared. The meeting will be suspended until order has been restored. 
 
Smoking 

Since 1 July 2008, South Cambridgeshire District Council has operated a Smoke Free Policy. No one is 
allowed to smoke at any time within the Council offices, or in the car park or other grounds forming part of 
those offices. 
 
Food and Drink 

Vending machines and a water dispenser are available on the ground floor near the lifts at the front of the 
building.  You are not allowed to bring food or drink into the meeting room. 

 

mailto:democratic.services@scambs.gov.uk


This page is left blank intentionally.



SOUTH CAMBRIDGESHIRE DISTRICT COUNCIL 
 

Minutes of the Environmental Services Portfolio Holder's Meeting held on 
Wednesday, 15 February 2017 at 5.00 p.m. 

 
Portfolio Holder: Mark Howell 
 
Councillors in attendance: 
Scrutiny and Overview Committee monitors: 
 

David Bard 
 

Officers: 
Patrick Adams Senior Democratic Services Officer 
Gemma Barron Head of Sustainable Communities and Wellbeing 
Myles Bebbington Head of Service - Environmental Services & 

Licensing 
Jason Clarke Development Officer 
Mike Hill Health and Environmental Services Director 
Jane Hunt Head of Service, Waste and Recycling Operations 
Rebecca Weymouth-Wood Interim SSWS Waste Policy Manager 
 
1. DECLARATIONS OF INTEREST 
 
 None. 
  
2. MINUTES OF PREVIOUS MEETING 
 
 The minutes of the meeting held on 22 December 2016 were agreed as a correct record. 

 
The Interim Head of Waste and Recycling reported that the bin round changes at the end 
of the month were being heavily publicised. 
 
The Head of Service, Environmental Health & Licensing stated that an article would be 
appearing in the next South Cambs magazine detailing the Council’s participation in the 
Healthier Options Partnership. It was noted that the benefits of this scheme were difficult 
to measure. 

  
3. PROPOSED FEES AND CHARGES FOR HEALTH AND ENVIRONMENTAL SERVICES 

2017/18 
 
 The Head of Service, Environmental Health and Licensing presented this report, which 

proposed fees and charges for Health and Environmental for the 2017/18 financial year. 
He indicated which fees and charges were statutory and so could not be amended. 
 
The Head of Service, Environmental Health and Licensing explained that the aim of the 
fees were to pay for the cost of providing the service. For example the report proposed 
that the fee for the renewal of a vehicle licence be reduced by £5, as the renewal process 
had become more efficient. 
 
Minor amendment to report 
It was noted that the 2016/17 charge for a licence for houses in multiple occupancy was 
£650.00, not £6505. 
 
The Environmental Services Portfolio Holder stated that on balance he would prefer to set 
a high maximum charge to allow officers the flexibility to charge more if it was necessary 
to recover costs. 

Page 1

Agenda Item 2



Environmental Services Portfolio Holder's Meeting Wednesday, 15 February 2017 

 
Serving improvement notice under the Housing Act 2004 
The Environmental Services Portfolio Holder expressed concern that a maximum charge 
of £250 for the serving of an improvement notice under the Housing Act 2004 might be 
insufficient to cover the Council’s costs in more complicated cases. He therefore decided 
to set a maximum charge of £550.  
 
The Head of Service, Environmental Health and Licensing made the following points: 

 The cost of the initial application for a Sex Shop Establishment was £3,750 due to 
the cost of dealing with the concerns expressed by local residents. 

 The cost of inspecting zoos varied greatly depending on the premises and the 
issues raised by those carrying out the inspection. 

 
The Head of Service, Waste and Recycling Operations made the following points: 

 It was proposed that no charge should be made for supplying extra blue or green 
bins, as these encouraged more recycling. 

 Officers often worked with parish councils to prosecute for dog fouling, although 
enforcement was time consuming. 

 
Setting fees for the collection of commercial waste 
The Environmental Services Portfolio Holder accepted the proposed fees in the report. 
 
The Environmental Services Portfolio Holder 
 
AGREED  
 
A) The fees and charges as set out in appendix 1 of the report, with the amendment 

of the maximum charge for the Serving of Improvement Notices Under the Housing 
Act 2004 to £550. 

 
B) The fees and charges for the Commercial Waste Service, as laid out in the report. 

  
4. ACTIVE & HEALTHY 4 LIFE (EXERCISE REFERRAL) SCHEME 
 
 The Head of Sustainable Communities and Wellbeing presented this report, which 

updated the Environmental Services Portfolio Holder on the Council’s Active & Healthy 4 
Life exercise referral scheme. She explained that referrals were up by 60% compared to 
this time last year and completions had increased by 157%. Previously, the centres had 
been paid regardless of whether the service user attended their sessions. Those who did 
not attend would be contacted to ascertain why. 
 
Gamlingay Sports Centre  
The Head of Sustainable Communities and Wellbeing was pleased to recommend that the 
Gamlingay Sports Centre no longer needed to be under review. Local member Councillor 
Bridget Smith was praised for her work in increasing the number of referrals and helping to 
drive the improvements. 
 
Cambourne and Cottenham sports centres 
The Head of Sustainable Communities and Wellbeing explained that the Sports Inclusion 
Co-ordinator was liaising regularly with the staff at both centres and it was recommended 
that these centres should remain on review for the time being. 
 
It was noted that local authorities in the surrounding areas ran similar schemes. 
 

Page 2



Environmental Services Portfolio Holder's Meeting Wednesday, 15 February 2017 

The Director of Health and Environmental Services agreed to check the scheme of 
delegation regarding the setting of charges for the users of this service. 
 
The Environmental Services Portfolio Holder 
 
AGREED 
 
A) That Cottenham centre remain on review to give them opportunity to improve with 

a new manager. 
 
B) That Cambourne centre remain on review to see if future development plans can 

capitalise on the potential of this centre. 
 
C) To support the future long term vision for the A&H4L scheme. 
 
D) To support the aims for 2017/2018 financial year. 

  
5. FORWARD PLAN 
 
 It was noted that there was no Forward Plan. 
  
6. DATE OF NEXT MEETING 
 
 Meetings will be held when necessary. 
  

  
The Meeting ended at 5.40 p.m. 

 

 

Page 3



This page is left blank intentionally.



Page 1 of 10 
 

 
 
 

  
REPORT TO: Environmental Services Portfolio Holder 29 August 2017 

LEAD OFFICER: Director Health and Environmental Services 
 

 
 

FUTURE APPROACH TO DRY RECYCLING COLLECTION 
 

Purpose 
 
1. The purpose of this report is to present the future options for recycling in SCDC and 

promote discussion and feedback before a cabinet discussion and decision in 
September. This is a key decision because it is significant in terms of its effects on 
communities in SCDC. It was first published in the August 2017 Forward Plan. 

 
Recommendations 

 
2. It is recommended that the portfolio holder seeks the views of the committee in order 

to inform a recommendation to Cabinet. 
 
Reasons for Recommendations  

 
3. Two external technical assessments and in-house analysis have narrowed the myriad 

options of recycling collection regimes in South Cambridgeshire down to two 
presented here. A comparison of the ongoing costs of operating these options and 
their respective recycling rates show no significant difference. Given that there are 
differences in the number vehicles required to run each option a   a  seven year life 
profile is being prepared. An independent expert has reviewed these assessments.  
 
Background 

 
4. Domestic waste collection in SCDC and Cambridge City is a core activity of the 

Single Shared Waste Service, and residents achieve a recycling rate of over 50%. At 
present SCDC policy is to operate a ‘paper-out’ recycling collection service where 
residents are encouraged to present paper for collection separately to other materials 
using caddies. This paper is then sold separately. The recycling service operates 
using 12 trucks; in October 2017 eight ‘split bodied’ vehicles are due for renewal – 
these are the vehicles used for collecting blue bin contents alongside paper on the 
same round in SCDC. Any replacement vehicles will have a lifetime of 7 years; the 
specification for the vehicles is determined by the materials they are transporting, 
effectively fixing the collection service for that period.  

 
The Shared Waste Service is also continually reviewing good practice, industry 
guidance, safe operating techniques and cost effectiveness, and all of these inform 
our recommended collection regimes, charges and policies.  

 
This report summarises work undertaken to evaluate the costs and benefits of the 
different options for dry recycling collections. It draws on external review and our own 
experience in operating a major domestic recycling service, and puts a case for 
change to the current collection regime. 
 

 

Page 5

Agenda Item 3



Page 2 of 10 
 

Note that the newly operating underground bin scheme in NW Cambridge is excluded 
from this options appraisal; the site operates using a bespoke vehicle as part of an 
agreement with the University and will continue to do so. 

 
Considerations 
 

5. Approach taken to assess options: 
 
5.1 Modelling Study - background 
The national Waste & Resources Action Programme (WRAP) and Ricardo 
Environmental were commissioned to assess a number of different service options for 
our shared waste and recycling services to improve kerbside recycling levels, and 
compare their comparative costs and performance. The approach compares the 
options by calculating likely performance, resource levels and comparative costs 
against the current service using our data, WRAP benchmarking data and agreed 
operational and financial assumptions. The tool used is not a budget tool – it is a cost 
comparison tool.  
 
The wide range of initial options included recycling co-mingled, two stream (with 
paper collected separately), multistream (separate materials, multiple containers), 
separate food waste and (chargeable) garden waste. Sensitivity modelling was also 
carried out on separate paper collections relating to paper price/tonne and tonnage.  
 
5.2 Modelling study - outcomes 
The outcome concluded that the current service was already a high performing 
service and that separate food waste collection would significantly increase relative 
costs, with limited impact on recycling performance. The most cost effective options 
in terms of cost and recycling performance involved co-mingled and two stream 
(paper out). The least cost effective were likely to be multistream collections. 
However,  

 Neither of the proposed new options (paper out everywhere; co-mingle 
everywhere) are likely to result in financial savings compared to the current 
baseline (paper out in SCDC, co-mingled in CCC).  

 None of the three services show significant difference in recycling rates. 

 They have no significant difference in new or whole system costs. 

 There are no significant savings in moving to a uniform (single) service across 
the whole area. 

 
Note that this represents a snapshot in time and does not account for future growth. 
 
5.3 Modelling study - sensitivity analysis 
For the ‘paper out’ service to operate across SCDC and CCC the work looked at 
changes to paper price, paper tonnage and service accessibility within Cambridge 
City. 

 Paper price – The paper market can be highly volatile and fluctuations will 

have a direct impact on the Net income of the service. This reflects the higher 

risk profile of the paper out service. The options analysis was based on 

£106.50/tonne. The value over the past year has ranged from £70/tonne to 

£120/tonne (it is currently £112/tonne). 

 
 
 
 

Page 6



Page 3 of 10 
 

 Paper tonnage – paper tonnages have been in long term decline, but paper 

processors believe this is likely to stabilise and the effects will to a degree be 

offset by continued demand for high quality paper. A decline in paper tonnage 

of 5% does not have a substantial impact on Net collection costs. 

 

 Accessibility – The paper out service modelling assumed 100% of Cambridge 

City properties had access to the service. A reduced access rate as a result of 

narrow streets will reduce Net income and increase Net collection costs 

partially offset by reduced fuel (mileage).  

 
5.4 Second stage assessment  
The modelling work effectively filtered many options down to a few which were likely 
to be viable in terms of outcomes, operational viability and financial implications. After 
discussion with Directors at SCDC and CCC the potential for collecting paper-out 
across the whole service was discounted; with no expected increase in recycling rate, 
significant start-up costs for introducing this in the City, a phased introduction to 
account for vehicle types, and limited ability to operationalise it in flats and some 
narrow City streets being inaccessible to split body vehicles, it was not supported. It 
was felt reaching operational agreement to collect side waste, and increasing 
information to residents on recycling opportunities, may reap more reward in terms of 
recycling rates.  
 
The two options remaining for second stage assessment were co-mingled collections 
everywhere, and current policy (comingled in City, paper-out in SCDC). 
 
As it is a broad comparative cost tool, a recommendation of the initial modelling work 
was that a more detailed cost assessment was conducted on any preferred options.  
 
The main determinant of the cost of options is the number of vehicles (requiring 
capital investment, maintenance and operational costs, and staffing costs); the 
determinant of the number of vehicles is the number of rounds. These were then 
modelled by Webaspex, based on data from the current service and including set 
criteria such as collection days, working day duration, vehicle speed, and variation in 
vehicle types, and allowances for growth.  
 
In addition assessment of the wider impacts and opportunities of the options (largely 
qualitative analysis) was needed. This work was undertaken in-house by the Shared 
Waste Service and Finance using our accounts, knowledge of operational and policy 
constraints and opportunities, and evidence from residents’ surveys. Our findings and 
reasoning were then discussed with an industry expert to quality assure our process 
of assessment and challenge our assumptions.  
 
Aspects considered by SSWS included: 

 Resident acceptability – ease of use 

 Operational impact (flexibility and resilience of a single fleet, use of 

boxes/caddies) 

 Legislative resilience  

 Financial implications  

 Contractual impact  

 Environmental impact (CO2, waste hierarchy) 

 Health & Safety considerations (relating to lifting and handling)  

 Materials quality 

Page 7



Page 4 of 10 
 

 Resilience and capacity (planning for growth). 

 

Options 
 
6. Table 1 below details the main differences and implications of each option. Financial 

comparison is the subject of Table 2.  
 
 

Page 8



Page 5 of 10 
 

TABLE 1 – comparison of options 
 

Aspect considered Co-mingle all recycling Paper-out SCDC (current policy) 

Modelled diversion from 
landfill (from Ricardo 
assessment) 

53.8% 53.5% 

Resident acceptability +Feedback from informal discussion with Parishes and 
individuals has been neutral. 
  
+Simplification is often supported by residents, and is 
easier to communicate. 
 
 

+Feedback from informal discussion with Parishes and 
individuals has been neutral. 
 
+ In the 2015/16 residents’ survey 90% of residents felt 
the blue bin and caddy service had stayed the same or 
improved.  
 
- Of those residents who expressed dissatisfaction with 
the waste service, issues with the paper caddy were the 
second most cited reason (13% raised this).  
 
-Typically 3250 caddies are reported lost or damaged 
each year.  

Resident participation +Easy to use and familiar system (blue bin). 
+Easy to understand. 
+Easy to communicate  
Would need an initial communication ‘push’ and then 
ongoing communications activities are business as 
usual.  
+Aligns with our RECAP partners’ collection regimes in 
neighbouring authorities. 

+This is a known service. 
-Quantities of paper collected are declining but this may 
be a reflection of decreased paper use rather than lack of 
uptake by residents, which is not routinely monitored.  
-Requires more understanding and involvement from 
resident and requires additional explanation.  
Needs a communications ‘push’ to increase rates and 
decrease contamination, and then ongoing 
communications activities as part of business as usual. 

Operational impact 
(staff) 

Fewer permanent staff (2 x driver and 4 x loaders 
compared to paper-out resources needed – we 
currently have vacancies and turnover of qualified 
drivers so this will not lead to redundancy). 
 
+Co-mingling will simplify the collection process for 
crew members, especially those who work across the 

This option requires more permanent staff (2 x drivers and 
4 x loaders) compared to co-mingled option.  
 
 
See also H&S considerations. 

P
age 9



Page 6 of 10 
 

boundary and so operate two different collection 
regimes. 
 
+Co-mingling will slightly increase productivity by 
increasing number of bins collected  as crew members 
will only have a bin to empty rather than bin and an 
additional separate caddy.  
 
-Some residents may ask for an additional blue bin to 
take the paper and this will represent extra ‘lifts’ for 
crews; this is not anticipated to be a significant 
proportion as most who use caddies store them inside 
the existing bin and withdrawing the use of the caddy 
will free up that space; 10% take-up has been allowed 
for in financial calculations. 
 
 

Operational impact 
(rounds and vehicles) 

+ Fewer vehicles. 11 vehicles needed in total, plus 0.5 
spare (shared across waste streams). 
 
+For all new 26 tonne vehicles narrower vehicles can 
be specified (with no loss of capacity) which will make 
them suitable for use everywhere – increased 
operational flexibility. 
 
+Commingled vehicles have larger capacity  will enable 
larger rounds to be completed without revisiting the tip 
as often; reduced fuel costs and CO2.   
 
+Ready availability of standard collection vehicles to 
hire should operational problems arise. 

- More vehicles. 13 vehicles needed in total, plus 1 spare 
(can not be shared across waste streams). Note this is an 
increase by 1 on current vehicle numbers. 
 
- Split-bodied trucks will be required, which do not work 
across the border due to the difference in collection 
regime and vehicle size. 
 
_smaller capacity vehicles will increase number of visits to 
the tip; increased fuel costs and CO2.   
 
-Limited ability to hire split body vehicles should 
operational problems arise.  

Operational impact 
(other) 

+Eliminates dealing with 3250 caddy issues per year. 
Reduced calls and handling by service centres and 
business support staff as a result. 
+Simpler contract management for disposal and 

See H&S considerations. 
 

P
age 10



Page 7 of 10 
 

reporting. 
+Can be operationalised quickly. 

Resilience and capacity +This option is anticipated to accommodate projected 
growth until 2021/2. This is based on forecast 
completions of approximately 18,500 properties. 
 
+Vehicles can be used across waste streams and fewer 
spares and repair issues with fewer vehicle options. 

This option requires the purchase of an additional vehicle 
now to bring the current policy into effect (ie to provide a 
paper-out service to the 10,000 houses currently 
temporarily co-mingling their recycling. Cost included in 
Table 2). 
 
-It is estimated that at least one other refuse vehicle will 
be required in 2019/20 to accommodate growth. This will 
be dependent on the location of the growth and it is 
possible another vehicle would be needed in the city at 
the same time. 

Contractual impact The paper sales contract with Palm Paper would be on 
the basis of suppling paper from NW Cambridge 
development (only).This would require a revision to the 
contract.  
 If this is not supported by Palm Paper or Amey 
(storage facility) then recycling in NW Cambridge can 
be converted to co-mingled with support from the 
University.  
-A variation would be required for the MRF contract with 
Amey for the blue bin recycling. 

+ A one year extension to the paper sales contract with 
Palm Paper has been negotiated as planned; this now 
runs to October 2018. 
 

Environmental impact +Fewer vehicles required (embodied carbon; lifecycle of 
materials). 
+Fewer miles driven as more cross-border efficiency 
and fewer tips with larger vehicles. The figure can not 
be calculated until detailed round modelling is 
undertaken if this option is agreed. 

- Additional vehicle required (embodied carbon; lifecycle 
of materials). 

H&S considerations +All collections are handled in a consistent way in bins 
or side waste; manual handling risks minimised. 

-Continued use of paper caddies is being evaluated as 
sampling has shown excessive weights being presented. 
This this is the subject of an ongoing H&S assessment. 

Materials quality -Co-mingling of waste is understood to lead to reduced 
quality of recyclates, regardless of the ability of the 
MRF (Materials Recycling Facility) to separate waste.  

+The good quality paper supply will be retained. 

P
age 11



Page 8 of 10 
 

 
- While paper will be separated out, it will not be of such 
high quality and its end use may not be as beneficial 
environmentally; there are some concerns over markets 
for this material as quality standards are being 
tightened (for example in China).  

 

P
age 12



Page 9 of 10 
 

 
7. Financial assessment 
 

Wherever possible this assessment has been based on actual costs from the last 
financial year, or current purchase costs (for vehicles and bins). 

 
These costs are not exhaustive; that is they do not represent the full costs of the 
recycling service as they exclude the costs of disposal and income from materials 
other than the 3200 tonnes of paper collected annually (MRF recycling) 

 
There are many other variables that will affect the finances of the service over the 
coming years; key costs out of our direct control include waste disposal, recycling and 
storage costs (contracts will be re-tendered within the lifetime of new vehicles), fuel, 
paper prices. The final detailed costing of these two options has been subject to 
sensitivity analysis of the paper price only, as this is the most significant difference 
between the two options. 

 
 

TABLE 2 – financial comparison using initial fleet numbers required 

 Co-mingle service 
annualised costs (£k) 

Current policy service 
annualised costs (£k) 

Vehicles - total operating cost1 1,625 2,023 

Caddy supply and replacement 0 20 

MRF gate fee 115 0 

Paper bulking fee 0 32 

Additional blue bin provision 18 0 

Additional communications 3 3 

Income from paper sales 0 358(based on £112 tonne) 

Total 1761 1720 

 
1
This includes vehicle cost, in-cab technology, depreciation, fuel, maintenance, insurance, fleet management, 

crew including overheads, materials and PPE. 

 
If the cost of paper fell to previous rate of £80 / tonne the co-mingled service would 
be £60k per year less than current policy. 
If the cost of paper rose to £130/ tonne the co-mingle service would cost £99k per 
year more than the current policy. 
 
Captial investment needed 
 
If co-mingling recycling, one less vehicle is needed from the current number (a saving 
against planned capital expenditure of £180k in 2017/18). It is anticipated (depending 
on household completions) that the next capital investment in a vehicle will instead be 
in 2021/22. In broad terms this means the capital investment already planned for will 
be sufficient for delivering this service for the next 7 years. 
 
If continuing to collect paper separately, a new vehicle will be needed in 2017/18 
(£180k) and it is anticipated that a minimum of one additional vehicle will be needed 
in 2019/20 (£180k). The exact location of any new households across the boundary 
of Cambridge City and South Cambridgeshire will determine the vehicle required to 
collect waste; it is possible that some vehicles of one type will have capacity while 
others are required. Total minimum £360k capital, which increases the cost of 
operating vehicles for future years. 
 

 

Page 13



Page 10 of 10 
 

Implications 
 

8. In the writing of this report, taking into account financial, legal, staffing, risk 
management, equality and diversity, climate change, community safety and any other 
key issues, the following implications have been considered: - 
 
Financial 

9. See section 7 – in summary providing a comingled service will cost £41k a year more 
than a paper-out service initially.  
However the paper-out service will require more vehicles and so capital investment 
over time and is subject to more fluctuation in costs due to the paper price.  

 
10. Legal 

There is a legislative requirement that if any changes to collection regime are 
fundamental, that the current TEEP (technically, environmentally, economically 
practicable) assessment is reviewed. The work completed to assess these options 
would be suitable to complete this review and it is felt these options are compliant. 

 
 Risk Management – of delivering either option 
11. Service performance - both options require changes to current rounds and these will 

be planned and introduced with regards to lessons learned from February 2017 to 
minimise the risks of missed bins. See also table 2 operational implications for risk 
reduction with regards fleet operation. 
 
Impact for residents during changes – neither option required bin day changes. 
Communications programmes will be designed to keep residents fully informed of any 
changes to service / to encourage improved uptake. 

 
Climate Change 

12. See Environmental impact in table 2. 
 
Consultation responses (including from the Youth Council) 

13. It is recommended the Youth Council is consulted if any change is to be 
recommended to Cabinet. 
 
Effect on Strategic Aims 
 

14. Aim 1 - An Innovative and Dynamic Organisation – adopting a more commercial and 
business-like approach to ensure we can continue to deliver the best possible 
services at the lowest possible cost 
 
What success will look like:  

 
Single Shared Waste Service achieves savings targets, income surpluses, 
improved customer satisfaction and increased recycling  

 
Shared services realise business benefits around savings, service quality and 
resilience.  

 
These options both provide opportunities and benefits across a range of outcomes 
(cost, sustainability, resilience) which can be maximised through the method of 
implementation. 
 

Report Author:  Jane Hunt – Interim Head of Service 
Telephone: (01954) 713154 

Page 14



 
 
  
 
REPORT TO: Environmental Services Portfolio Holder 29 August 2017 

LEAD OFFICER: Director, Health and Environmental Services  
 

 
 

Community Awards 2018 
 

Purpose 
 
1. To receive suggestions from the Portfolio Holder to inform the planning of the 

Community Awards 2018. 
 
2. This is not a key decision. 

 
Recommendations 

 
3. It is recommended that the Portfolio Holder notes and comments on the proposed 

timeline (paragraph 5), makes suggestions as to potential award categories, and 
makes any further comments and suggestions to inform the planning of the 
Community Awards 2018. 

 
Background 

 
4. The South Cambridgeshire District Council Community Awards were first held in 2010 

to celebrate the huge amount of work that local councils, community groups and 
individuals carry out in and for their communities.  The awards are very popular and 
well received by local residents. 

 
Considerations 

 
5. In recent years the nominations process has been launched in October and remained 

open until mid-January.  The awards ceremony has been held at South 
Cambridgeshire Hall in early March.  The timings seem to have worked well and as 
such officers propose to work to a similar timeframe for the 2018 awards. 
 

6. The number of awards presented has grown over the past seven years.  In 2017 the 
award categories were: 
 
(a) Village Hero 
(b) Parish Councillor of the Year 
(c) Environment 
(d) Outstanding Youth Initiative 
(e) Outstanding Local Service or Amenity 
(f) Wellbeing Award 
(g) Special Portfolio Holder Award 
 
The Village Hero award remains the most nominated category and it is therefore 
suggested that this remains a category for 2018.  It has been suggested that the 
judging panel also consider awarding an optional Lifetime Contribution Award if they 
feel a nominee has made a particular contribution over a long period, but that this is 

 

Page 15

Agenda Item 4



not a category for separate nomination.  Officers would welcome suggestions, 
relating to Corporate Plan priorities, for award categories for 2018. 

 
7. South Cambridgeshire Hall has proved to be a popular venue for the awards 

ceremony.  It is suggested that the 2018 awards ceremony continues to be held at 
South Cambridgeshire Hall, however, depending on the number of nominees it may 
not be possible to invite all nominators and nominees to attend the ceremony, which 
has been customary in the past. 
 

8. In 2016 and 2017 sponsorship was provided by Hill.  Sponsorship will be sought 
again for the 2018 awards. 
 

9. Officers are actively investigating potential keynote speakers and entertainment 
options for the awards ceremony.  Any suggestions would be gratefully received. 

 
Options 

 
10. The Portfolio Holder could  

(a) note and comment on the proposed timetable (paragraph 5),  
(b) suggest award categories for the Community Awards 2018, and/or 
(c) make further comments and suggestions to inform the planning of the 

Community Awards 2018. 
 

Implications 
 

11. In the writing of this report, taking into account financial, legal, staffing, risk 
management, equality and diversity, climate change, community safety and any other 
key issues, the following implications have been considered: 
 
Financial and Staffing 

12. Sponsorship income has helped to keep the cost of the awards to a minimum for the 
Council.  The majority of cost to the Council relates to staffing time and all additional 
costs are included within agreed budgets for the year. 

 
 Risk Management 
13. A risk assessment is completed prior to the awards ceremony.  
 

Consultation responses 
 
14. A number of staff and elected members involved in the 2017 awards provided 

comments after the event.  These comments were collated and have been used to 
inform this report.  In addition to the points included within the considerations section, 
there were a number of suggestions regarding the nomination forms, the judging 
process, publicity and logistics of the ceremony, which will be implemented.  

 
Effect on Strategic Aims 
 

15. The Community Awards celebrate the huge amount of work that local councils, 
community groups and individuals carry out in and for their communities.  Categories 
reflect the Corporate Plan priorities. 
 

 
 

Report Author:  Gemma Barron – Head of Sustainable Communities and Wellbeing 
Telephone: (01954) 713340 

Page 16



 
 
 
 

  
REPORT TO: Environmental Services Portfolio Holder  29 August 2017 

LEAD OFFICER: Director Health & Environmental Services 
 

 
PROPOSED FEES AND CHARGES FOR FOOD HYGIENE REINSPECTIONS FOR 

2017/18 
 

Purpose 
 
1. The purpose of this report is to propose a new fee for Food Hygiene rating  re-

inspections for Health & Environmental Services . 
 
2. This not a key decision.  Under the terms of the Council’s Constitution it is a decision 

for the portfolio holder.  
 

Recommendations 
 
3. That the Environmental Services Portfolio Holder confirms the proposed fees and 

charges set out in Appendix 1. 
 

Reasons for Recommendations 
 
4. Confirming the proposed fees and charges will contribute to the efficient and cost 

effective delivery of a range of council services that impact directly on people’s safety 
and health. 

 
Background 

 
5. Fees and charges for functions and services undertaken by Health & Environmental 

Services are reviewed at least annually and recommendations made for the next 
financial year. These are both statutory and therefore fixed, or discretionary, where 
there is an opportunity for variation.  

 
6. In deciding on any fees or charges the portfolio holder has previously had regard to a 

number of factors including council policy, council Aims and Objectives, economic 
factors e.g. inflation, neighbouring authority charges, market conditions and the need 
to recover costs. 

 
7. A national scheme exists known as the “Food Hygiene Rating System” this system 

assesses premises against a pre set criteria to grade them from zero to five with five 
indicating that the authority has trust in their food hygiene processes and procedures. 

 
8. The scheme has been taken up nationally over recent years and is seen as a key 

indicator for the general public to determine whether premises are responsible with 
regards to food safety management. 
 
 
 
 

 

Page 17

Agenda Item 5



 
 

9. All initial inspections and subsequent planned inspections under the scheme must be 
carried out free of charge and a score issued as part of the visit with an explanation of 
how the scoring was reached. It is becoming common place where businesses do not 
score highly that they wish to address the issues raised and require a second 
inspection prior to a programmed visit ( typically 12 months to 3 years after the initial 
assessment) to try and increase their rating, which they can then use to help promote 
their business. 
 

10. There is no legal requirement for SCDC to undertake a second one off visit at the 
request of the business, but fully understand the “business need” to improve their 
scoring where appropriate. 
 

11. Advice has been sought from the Food Standards Agency with regard to charging for 
visits to re-inspect ahead of the normal planned visit which may vary from 12 months 
to Three years, it has been established that a charge can be levied provided it is 
aimed at cost recovery only. 
 

12. This charge will not create significant income, but there have been between 10 and 
15 such cases since January 2017 where a charge could have been levied and it is 
expected to grow in the future. 
 
Considerations 

 
13. Appendix 1 shows the recommended charge for 2017/18 and includes references to 

policies relating to the charge. This charge id approved will then be included in the 
normal fee setting rounds for future years. 
 
Options 

 
14. The Portfolio Holder has the option to: 

(a) Accept the charges detailed in Appendix 1 
(b) Reject the charges detailed in Appendix 1 
(c) Amend the discretionary fees and charges detailed in Appendix 1.  
 
Implications 
 

15. The fees and charges for the remainder of this financial year set out in Appendix 1 
will produce an income to the council that will contribute to the efficient and cost 
effective delivery of a range of council services that impact directly on people’s safety 
and health. 

 
 

16.  Financial The recommendation will result in an increase in income on a 
cost recovery basis 

Legal None identified at this time 

Staffing None identified at this time 

Risk Management Regular performance and financial monitoring of services 

Equality and 
Diversity 

None identified at this time 
 

Equality Impact 
Assessment 
completed 

No 

 

Climate Change None identified at this time 

Page 18



 
 

 
Consultations 

 
17. Adjoining Local Authorities have been consulted for comparative and consistency 

purposes. 
 

Effect on Strategic Aims 
 

18. Confirming the proposed fees and charges will contribute to the efficient and cost 
effective delivery of a range of council services that impact directly on people’s safety 
and health, so contributing to the achievement of the council’s Strategic Aims. 

 
Conclusions / Summary 

 
19. In setting the proposed level of discretionary fees and charges a number of factors 

have been taken into account, including council policy, council Aims and Objectives, 
economic factors e.g. neighbouring authority charges, market conditions and the 
need to recover costs. 

 
 
Background Papers: the following background papers were used in the preparation of this 
report:  

None 
 

Contact Officer:  Myles Bebbington – Head of Service Env Health & Licensing 
Telephone: (01954) 712922 
 
 

 

Page 19



This page is left blank intentionally.



Appendix 1 

 

 
 
Officers re-inspecting food 
premises as part of the Food 
Hygiene Ratings system 

Discretionary: 
ESPFH 

2017-18 
 
 

£90.00 

 To ensure that 
where services 
can be charged 

for SCDC 
covers as a 

minimum the 
cost of that 
advice or 
actions 

 

Page 21



This page is left blank intentionally.


	Agenda
	2 Minutes of Previous Meeting
	3 Future Approach to Dry Recycling Collection
	4 Community Awards 2018
	5 Proposed Fees and Charges for Food Hygiene Reinspections for 2017/18
	Appendix 1 food safety charge


